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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is located at Century Yard, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Zephry House, Mary Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Suites 3604-05,
One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company was involved in investment holding
and the Group was involved in the provision of public relation
services and property investment.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is i-cf, Inc., which is incorporated in
Japan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
certain equity investments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2006. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The acquisition of a subsidiary during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This
method involves allocating the cost of the business combinations
to the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The
cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements:

HKAS 21 Amendment  Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

HKAS 39 Amendment  The Fair Value Option

HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

The principal changes in accounting policies are as follows:

(@) HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment regarding
a net investment in a foreign operation, all exchange
differences arising from a monetary item that forms part
of the Group's net investment in a foreign operation are
recognised in a separate component of equity in the
consolidated financial statements irrespective of the
currency in which the monetary item is denominated. This
change has had no material impact on these financial
statements as at 31 December 2006 or 31 December
2005.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Amendment for the fair value option

This amendment has changed the definition of a financial
instrument classified as fair value through profit or loss
and has restricted the use of the option to designate any
financial asset or any financial liability to be measured at
fair value through the income statement. The Group had
not previously used this option, and hence the amendment
has had no effect on the financial statements.

(©) HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 January
2006, which provides guidance in determining whether
arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting
must be applied. The Group has determined based on
this interpretation that certain arrangements of the Group
contained leases and accordingly, the Group has treated
them in accordance with HKAS 17 Leases. However, the
adoption of this interpretation has had no material impact
on these financial statements.

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are not mandatory for these financial statements. The Group
has not early applied these HKFRSs in these financial statements.
The following new and revised HKFRSs, although not early
adopted by the Group, will have impact on the Group's financial
statements in the period of initial application.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEGERENFTEMBREED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 1 Amendment

Capital Disclosures
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The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard will

affect the disclosures about qualitative information about the
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Group's objective, policies and processes for managing capital;
quantitative data about what the Company regards as capital;
and compliance with any capital requirements and the
consequences of any non-compliance.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007. The standard requires disclosures that
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group's financial instruments and the nature
and extent of risks arising from those financial instruments and
also incorporates many of the disclosure requirements of HKAS
32.

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The standard requires the disclosure of
information about the operating segments of the Group, the
products and services provided by the segments, the geographical
areas in which the Group operates, and revenues from the
Group's major customers. This standard will supersede HKAS
14 “Segment Reporting”.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7, HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-Int
10, HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 shall be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006, 1 May 2006,
1 June 2006, 1 November 2006, 1 March 2007 and 1 January
2008, respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of the HKAS 1
Amendment and HKFRS 7 may result in new or amended
disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited

BRAXEREZERERAF

23 ERMERENFEMBREER

4 2 3¢ )

BENBRESERNETREN T
F—A—Bsz&kRE 2 FEHRE
Ao RERERIELIE - EH R
REERTAAEESRTAZER
- ARZSeRITAMELRR 2
HELREE ARk EEetER
FIFPZEREENR o

BRM RS ERIESHEN —FFTN
F—A—BRZKERAE 2 FEHRE
Ao ZRIFIM B AAKERED
2B Zo B Em RS - A&
BEEMEREEIREAEEETER
PzWetz BRHEE L&t ERIR
REBPBREERNF 1457 [0 B
&l e

&8 (BRM GRS ENRELZES)
— 287 B (BERMEHRELERZ
BZE8g)— 2B T8 BRMK
BERNRBZES®) —2EB BF
(EERMBREENREZES) —&
B10 - B8 (BRM B HREEAZE
ZEg) 2B 11 REE (ERMKR
SRABREZBE) — 212805
R-ZZZBRF=A—H  _TTRF
FA—B ZFFRFRA-B =
ZERF+—A—RB ZZ2LF=
A—BR=_ZFFNF—A—H=HNUE
M FERRER -

!
i
b

AEBEEMEZFEREEBTZ
BEVBRELEANHNIGER 2 F
g EOMBEWRL  BERRAT
BERTEAE SRET REBMHHE
R 757 Al Be BB A IEET 2 ]
B ARSI REERI 2B BNH
BEEARTSHAKE ZEERA
M BN ERBEBARTZE -



Notes T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % ) R Y A

31 December2006 — T XF+—-A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREAE

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so
allocated:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, however not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b);

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows

Buildings 20 years or the prepaid land
lease term, if shorter

Leasehold improvements 20%

Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 10%

Office equipment 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of
the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each balance sheet date.

Knowhow and licences

Purchased knowhow and licences are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs. The Group considers whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a party to
it. The embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract
which is not measured at fair value through profit or loss when
the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks of
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the
host contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified in the another category.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a
separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm's length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation
models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount
of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group is collectively assessed for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

In relation to trade receivable, a provision for impairment is made
when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that
the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due
under the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of
the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred
from equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on
these assets are not reversed.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

. the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair
value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not
remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated balance sheet, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly

in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
interests in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) financial public relation service income, when services have
been rendered;

(b) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model further details of which
were given in note 28 to the financial statements. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions"), if applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending
on the date on which the relevant employees become fully
entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if
a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2
in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2
only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002
that had not vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on
or after 1 January 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees' basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company issues warrants and share options for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Participants
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment,
whereby they render services as consideration for equity
instruments of the Company (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with the warrant and share
option subscribers is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using an appropriate pricing model further
detailed in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements. In valuing
equity-settled transactions upon date of grant, no account is taken
for any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if
applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending
on the date on which the relevant warrant and share option
subscribers become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative amount recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The recognition for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative amount recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No amount is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effects of outstanding warrants and share options
are reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates

ShE&
WIS IREZAB T (RN A El 2 e R 23R
BE) 27 - REBESERATHEE
RE 2R  MEEBE5RE
BHMEFR BB BAZINEE K
B INERSYAER S BHER 2
NREEMIER AR - DIINEFHEZE
MEERABREERBER ZEE
K IERENIRE - FTEELEZEHT
AT o RFE LKA E 2 INEIE
B¥IEE DHABEAR S BE 2 ER
BE - AT EFE ZINEIEE’ETE
BRFRAEEATEAB 2EXKR

At

at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 5o

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using

the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are %%59&%%/\?2%@%@%13%
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the balance cREEH RFERZEERA
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated T s NIREEHEAZ EXTE AR
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange AZE2REY  ZEER 2GR
rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income RENMETFHEXTELRETT

statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

b A 2 BB H, 2= 58 Rl A WO B
FRIE - HEGINERE  ERER
PR ZEEEINEB B BT
2RAFEN MW RPRER -

HRBEEREMEBRME - MBI
BARZIREREILZIR S ME B HIfE
TIMERETT o BINTBRREFA
KRELRZ2BSRBLFARNZ INEF
HERGE [ETT -

Annual Report 2006
—ERAEER

59



60

NoTES To FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % ) R Y A

31 December2006 — T XF+—-A=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,

are discussed below.

(i) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, management determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair-value
estimates. In making its judgement, management considers
information from (i) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature, condition or location by
reference to available market information; (ii) recent prices
of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions; and (jii)
discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current market rates for
similar properties in the same location and condition, and
by using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing

of cash flows.

(ii) Presentation of convertible bonds and fair value of

derivative component of convertible bonds

Convertible bonds of the Group are presented into the
derivative component and the liability component of the
convertible bonds. This requires an initial recognition of
the derivative component and the liability component at

fair value.

The derivative component initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value is determined by an

option pricing model.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Presentation of convertible bonds and fair value of
derivative component of convertible bonds
(continued)

The amount of liability component initially recognised is
determined with reference to the net proceeds from the
issuance of the convertible bonds and the fair value of
derivative component at initial recognition. The liability
component is subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is subject to the
limitations of the Black-Scholes option pricing model and
binomial model and the uncertainty in estimates used by
management in the assumptions as disclosed in notes 27
and 28, respectively, to the financial statements. The Black-
Scholes option pricing model and the binomial model are
modified for the early exercise of warrants and share
options, respectively, in limited open exercise periods.
Should the estimates including limited early exercise
behaviour, expected interval and frequency of open
exercise periods in the lives of warrants and share options,
and other relevant parameters of the models change, there
would be material changes in the amount of equity settled
transactions recognised in the financial statements.
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3. EZE3E G

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group's primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining
the Group's geographical segments, revenues are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
assets. No further geographical segment information is presented
as the Group's customers and operations are principally located
in Hong Kong.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

(i)  Continuing operations:
(a) the financial public relation service segment;
(b) the property investment segment invests in restricted

and commercial properties in Mainland China for
rental income purposes; and

(c) the others segment comprises, principally, the
Group's other corporate income and expense items.

(i) Discontinued operation — the development and
distribution of solvent pesticides segment.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, loss and certain asset,

liability and expenditure information for the Group's

business segments for the years ended 31 December

2006 and 2005.
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4. SEFEHW

(@) ¥Bo8W
TREVEE-ZEZER-Z
TRFE+-_A=1t—HILFER
SEEBHEEE  BERE
TEE BERFAZEHR -

Group AEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RREEXE ALEEER
Development and
Financial public distribution of
relationsenvice  Propertyinvestment Others Eliminations Total solvent pesticides Consolidated
BEDMBERE E i | it BERHRRRAH &
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
ZERAE CTR0F CBEAF CRTRF CBEAE CTTNE CERAF CE51F CEEAE CTR0E CIRAF CT50F D8%5F _RIIf
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS0O0 HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS0OO  HKS'000  HK$000
TEn TEr TR TEr TEn TEr TR TRr TR TEn TEn TEr TR TEn
Sementrevenue:  AEUE:
Sdlestoertema HETIR
astomers zF 539 - - - - - - -5 - - 30 5w 3
Intersegment PRERRE
ales HE 2116 - - - - - (a0 - - - - - - -
Otherrevenue Elpha - = 1,000 1,000 - = - - 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000 1,000
Totel ) 1508 = 1,000 1,000 - - (ale) - 639 1,000 - 510 639 4120
Segmentresults  AEEE 2 - s 50 - - - - W) %0 (s (6739 @) (16239)
Interestand LENES)
wndloczedother  FE
income A 500 2489 - - T30
Undlocaed expenses~ KARER (39.167)  (18529) - - (9161 (18529
Finence costs BBA (281) - - -8 -
Lossbefore ax BB (3662) (15540) (2584) (16739) (39M0) (32.279)
Tat i (184)  (00) (200) - (e ()
Loss forthe year KRR
attrbutzbleto Rkl
eqiyhodesof  FRER
the Company (36,810) (15740)  (a784) (16739) (39.594) (32479
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. SWEHGGE)
(a) Business segments (continued) (@) ¥EX%oE @
Group AEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RREERE REEERH
Developmentand
Financial public distribution of
relationsenvice  Propertyinvestment Others Eliminations Total solvent pesticides Consolidated
BENBERE NERE i H it BERIRRRAH g4
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Z2RAE CTR0F CBRNF CRTRF CRRAEF CTTRE CRRAE CTTIF SRR RTDF CRRAE CTTRE CREAE CRRIF
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS'000  HK$000
Tén TEr TEn TEr TEn TEr TEx TEr TEn TEn TEn TR TEr  TEn
Rssetsand liabilitis  EEREE
Segmentassefs PERE 2,564 - 85905 46107 11,659 = - - 60128 46107 15 40002 60,143 86109
Undlocatedassels —~ FHEEE 433709 188753
Total asets fgz 493,852 27466
Segmentliabiltes AERE 1209 = 250 250 - = - - 149 B0 335 2309 4854 2559
Unaloctediebllies  %HEEE 5008 4355
Totallisilites ~~ £8E& 54900 46114
Othersegment  £fi5%
information; g
Depreciaion & - - - - - - - B - - 3R A 360
Amortisaionof EVRE
inanghleassets RE - - - - - - - - - - -9 -
Recognitonofprepad B 1itE
landleasepayments 3% - - - - 68 - - -6 - - W 68 59
Impaimentofitemsof 4
property, plantand
equipment - = - = - = - = - - 1584 3304 158 3364
Impaimentof
intangble assets - - - - - - - - - - - 2B - 2IB
Dectease nfairvalue
of mvestment
properties - 3145 500 - = - - 35 500 - - 36 500
Capita expenditure 256 - - - 903 8 - - 1159 8 - - 115 89
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5. li@kHEMIKA

Revenue, which is also the Group's tumover, represents service Was - TRAEBE LR - ThifEiR
income arising from the provision of financial public relation N H R RG E A 2 RBBUA
senvices and the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances REMRERERTNEREZEESR
for returns and trade discounts. An analysis of the Group's revenue mZ BRFE o NEE 2 Was RE M
and other income is as follows: WAL -
2006 2005
“EBBRE —TTRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 3 FHET FHET
Revenue Wz
Rendering of services TR AR TS 5,392 =
Attributable to continuing operations reported R 4R A WS R B3R~
inthe consolidated income statement FEREEBREA 5,392 -
Sale of goods attributable to a discontinued RIS ET R
operation HESm 11 - 3,120
5,392 3,120
Otherincome HAi WA
Bank interestincome RITHBHA 7,167 2,483
Rentalincome HEWA 1,000 1,000
Others Hity 359 6
Attributable to continuing operations reported 4R A& Ui 25 5K FH ¥R 2
inthe consolidated income statement FEREEBREA 8,526 3,489
Bank interestincome attributable to a IS<3-—% 579/
discontinued operation RITHEHA 11 - 254
8,526 3,743
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. MRRABIK

AEBEZBRBATEBRE MG GEA)

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

66

T3 &IE
2006 2005
—EEXRE _—_ZTTHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FET FAT
Cost of sales * SHEBCARY — 4771
Cost of services provided RAERBEA A 3,962 -
Depreciation * PrE 13 2,735 3,662
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments *  FE 15 L3 70 & #E R * 15 658 590
Amortisation of intangible assets * | E ER 17 - 940
Minimum lease payments under operating THREFEEHEET 2
leases in respect of land and buildings RIEAERIE 2,511 191
Auditors' remuneration ZE BN N & 1,060 850
Employee benefits expense (excluding BRERAMAX (TR
directors’ remuneration — note 8(a)): =EEMHE —MHE8@)) ¢
Wages, salaries and allowances * T4 - Fie KERR 6,498 3,385
Equity-settled share option expense PENCICE- e 15 245 -
Pension scheme contributions RIS HK
(defined contribution schemes)* (B ARG 2D * 95 114
6,838 3,499
Expense incurred for equity-settled share MEBERBEITRESE
options issued to business consultants 2 BERR e 2 2 - 6,216
Impairment of trade receivables * B 5 Fe W IE R E* 1,000 -
Impairment of items of property, plant and W - WERZEEE
equipment * VERIERS 1,584 3,364
Impairment of intangible assets * B EERE! - 2,115
Decrease in fair value of investment properties % & ¥ A (B 14 3,145 500
Net rental income THES WA FHE (586) (586)

# The disclosures presented in this note include those amounts

charged in respect of the discontinued operation, further details

of which are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

* At 31 December 2006, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in

future years (2005: Nil).
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FINANCE COSTS 7. HM¥BEF
Group
rEH
2006 2005
—BRAXRE —_TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on overdrafts wholly repayable ERAFAZEEEREZ
within five years BXAE 22 -
Interest on convertible bonds (note 25) AR ES A (FEE25) 2,795 -
Attributable to continuing operations reported A #r A Wamk 23R 2
inthe consolidated income statement SEH Y 2,817 -
DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EFRIEESFHALI#ME
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration () E=M<

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securites on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

REESHERZMARARE
7 EARAI (T EHAAL) R&FE
NEMEBIZE 161162 R 5E M 1E
BRE BEFFAM0T :

is as follows:
Group
AEE
2006 2005
—BERFE —_ZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Fees we 300 300
Other emoluments: H 3R ¢
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 3,166 2,432
Employee share option benefits 12 B B ER 7 = 1,802
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT SR 14 12
3,180 4,246
3,480 4,546
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
The remuneration of executive and non-executive directors

8. EFRIBERFHMALHE (W)

(@) E=M= #H
HITES MIFTESHEH

is set out below: N
Employee Pension
Salaries  share option scheme
and benefits contributions Total
Fees allowances EEBRE EKE£5t8  remuneration
e HeR2E B/H B “@ms
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2006 —EERE TER TER TET TER THT
Executive directors: WiTEE:
Isao Matsushima N=TE - 1,516 - - 1,516
KwokKingYan,Edmund &= - 1,650 - 14 1,664
Osamu Nakano RER - - - - -
Sosuke Kawanishi JFEEN - - = = =
Ryutaro Okada ] E e A - - - = -
Kiyohisa Nanri BMEEA - - - - -
- 3,166 - 14 3,180
Non-executive directors: FERTES
Sun Juyi HEE 100 - - - 100
Chiu Ching Katie HE 100 - - - 100
Hin Yat Ha H—E 100 - - - 100
300 - - - 300
300 3,166 - 14 3,480
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EFERIEEEFHALIME &)
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) () E=M< (@&

The remuneration of executive and non-executive directors WITES MIETES=I ST

is set out below: (continued) T (58)

Employee Pension
Salaries share option scheme
and benefits  contributions Total
Fees alowances (B2 B RIK£EE remuneration
ik e RoREh & K Bme
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2005 “ZTRF THL THT THT THT THT
Executive directors: HITEE

Isao Matsushima NS — 909 901 = 1810
Aiknobu Kataoka F e - 288 = = 288
Cai Wei Min 3 - 243 - 3 246
Chen Lawrence R e 12 - 63 - - 63
Kiyohisa Nanri BEEN-VS — - = = =
KwokKingYan,Edmund &K= - 217 901 - 1,118
Lao Seng Peng BT - 243 - 5 248
Masashi Ono AN - 39 - - 39
Oe Tadayuki AIETT - 39 - - 39
Osamu Nakano H R - - - - -
Ryutaro Okada fe I & A BA = = = - -
Sosuke Kawanishi NBEZEN = = = - -
Wong Kin Ping TRF - 168 - 4 172
Yeh Tung Ming L - 223 - - 223
- 2432 1,802 12 4,246

Non-executive directors; FHTES

Chan Sai Kuai Bttt & 50 = = = 50
Chiu Ching Katie HE 50 - - - 50
Hin Yat Ha - 50 - - - 50
Jiang Ming Le BIRs 50 - - - 50
Sun Juyi BEx 100 - - - 100

300 - - - 300

300 2,432 1,802 12 4,546
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2005: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2005: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid employees’ remuneration
The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2005: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in (a) above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2005: one) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

EERIEERETFHALTHS (8

(@) E=M= #H
FAE T R B LI
TEEZME (ZTTAF:

) -

FRBHRER R (EAESE
HHE SR B REEAMS (=
TERF D) -

(b) ZEBEFMALME
FRARERSHMERS 2D BEE
ME(CETREF IR ES -
HMeo R EX@HE - £/
HBR=%(CZTHF: —R)3*k
EFEREZESFMEE 2BE
(N

Group

RE
2006 2005
—EBEXRE —_ZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TATT

Salaries and allowances i Ko RE 2,078 660
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B R 25 12
3,180 672

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

FMNFUATRE ZFEE R H
BEAZIT

follows:
Number of employees
BEAH
2006 2005
—EBEXRE —_ZTHF
Nil to HK$ 1,500,000 £ %1,500,000/ 7T 3 1
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TAX 9. W&
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% BANGRIDBBEF NG EEBE
(2005: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in 7 ERBURMIRTIE 17,50 (22
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in T 17.5%) {EHEE - REIREZ
Mainland China have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing FERRTE A 2 T IE THAR IR B A fE 2
in Mainland China, based on existing legislation, interpretations BRITHE  REF@EMRIBETAE
and practices in respect thereof. Bl - BRERIEOIFTE -
2006 2005
“BEXRFE C—TTEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Group: REE :
Current BIEATR IR
—Hong Kong — &8 (16) -
— Mainland China — PRk 200 200
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBTIE
—Mainland China — Bl RRE 200 -
Total tax charge for the year FRBIER X B 384 200
Represented by: AE
Tax charge attributable to a discontinued BRI EEBEIETIE
operation (note 11) (HEaET1) (200) —
Tax charge attributable to continuing RiFEBRKRBRL
operations reported in consolidated FEE e BN
income statement HIEFRX 184 200
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TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax
using the statutory rates for the region in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at

M1\ ()

RIBAN D B] S EL MY A B AT b [0
EBR R EERR R ATE R Z A
X ERBEERREAE ZHIARX

the effective tax rates, is as follows: S (8%) ZHERIT ¢
Group — 2006 KEE ——BBRF
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
=8 A B A B &ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET FTHER
Loss before tax (including loss from BRI E 1S (B4
a discontinued operation) RIS 2 BB (29,651) (9,559) (39,210)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BIBEEMEAE 2 HIE (5,189) (3,155) (8,344)
Adjustments in respect of currenttax  BtiB 7 AAE B EATR 1B
of previous periods e 2 A% - 200 200
Income not subject to tax BARBIA (1,293) - (1,293)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 6,466 3,355 9,821
Tax charge/(credit) atthe Group's BREAEEERTXGTE
effective rate ZRIES S (ER) (16) 400 384
Group — 2005 REB ——TTRHF
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B =IN35 G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
Loss before tax (including loss from KR AT E 1R (B4
adiscontinued operation) RIMRERB 2 EE) (16,034) (16,245) (32,279)
Tax at the statutory tax rate RIEEEREFTE < iR (2,805) (5,361) (8,166)
Income not subject to tax BARTA (357) - (357)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR R 2 1,728 1,973 3,701
Temporary differences notrecognised 7 e 52 B B 2= 58 1,434 3,588 5,022
Tax charge atthe Group's REAEEEEMREGFE
effective rate Z IE - 200 200
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2006 includes a
loss of HK$25,231,000 (2005: HK$15,442,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note
29(b)).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year, the Group ceased the business of the
development and distribution of solvent pesticides and the Group
is set to focus on its financial public relation service and property
investment businesses.

The consolidated operating results associated with the
development and distribution of solvent pesticides operation

Notes T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % ) R Y A

31 December2006 — T XF+—-A=1+—H

FAFLFHSBREEGR

HE-_ZZ"F+-_A=+—AHL
FE  NAAERRRELREEER
B1E25,231,0008 T (ZZEZRHF :
15,442,00047T) © ERAA I 75HH
=N (FTzE29(b)) °

RILEEXRE
FA-ARBEDRIEAERDHRE
E)

ZER > AEEFE ST ERAME
REBMERMEREET -

FREFERDHREXEAR 2R
BREFREAWMT -

for the year are presented below:

2006 2005
—EBERE _—_ZTTHHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Revenue U = - 3,120
Cost of sales SHE AR = (4,771)
Otherincome HA - 254
Selling and distribution costs SHE k9 sHK A - (5,023)
Administrative expenses THRER = (4,840)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 YRR R E (1,000) -
Impairment of items of property, plant and Mm% - BB NREBER
equipment BB (1,584) (3,364)
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - (2,115)
Loss before tax from the discontinued iR PR TS 2 R AT
operation 18 (2,584) (16,739)
Tax I (200) -
Loss for the year from the discontinued BRIEREEBZ FA
operation 18 (2,784) (16,739)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The net cash flows of the discontinued operation for the year
are as follows:

RILEERE (8|

RIEREEBFN RS mE F
I

2006 2005
S —TTHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net cash inflow/(outflow) solely AL EBEE 2
arising from operating activities RBenA/ (RH) F8 131 (11,852)

Loss per share: BAREE
Basic, from the discontinued - N =
operation R
Diluted, from the discontinued 5 = F
operation KT

HKO.12 cents 1l HK0.98 cents 711l

N/A RE A N/A 7 i B

The calculations of basic loss per share amounts from the
discontinued operation are based on:

KREREREXGZBREANBERS
BT EEATREREE

2006 2005
—BEARE ZETRHF

Loss attributable to ordinary REBRIEREETE 2
equity holders of the Company RRAREBER
from the discontinued operation A% ER fE (5 &5 18

Weighted average number of T EGREREEMA
ordinary shares inissue during ZERNEBITE R

the year used in the basic loss Ik RS
per share calculation

HK$2,784,00058 7t  HK$16,739,0007 7T

2,447,675,290 1,699,860,000

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31 December
2006 and 2005 have not been disclosed, as warrants and share
options outstanding during the year, and the convertible bonds
outstanding during these years had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share for these years.
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12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12.
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

FAFRBRRELBRER

BREBSENRBEARR T BERR
FEMRFNEE R FRETEBBINE
FHHMEFH -

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

A 6 1A [ R T 2 SRR 78 M B B
BERBE_TENFR-_ZTTOF
T A=+ —HIEFEZARE@AH
BEFHZEFFEZERENGERA
RESSIER - AW ARWEHE—F
ERER-ZZERFT-_A=+—H
LHEEZERBEHEESE -

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31 December
2006 and 2005 have not been disclosed, as warrants and share
options outstanding during the year, and the convertible bonds
outstanding during these years had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share for these years.

BRENEBERIREBEATBUEE -

The calculation of basic loss per share are based on:

2006 2005
—EBEXRF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders It EF A E A E518
of the Company, used in the basic loss ZARREEBIRER
per share calculation: FE(R A :
From continuing operations REFFELEER 36,810 15,740
From discontinued operations KRBT 2,784 16,739
39,594 32,479
Number of shares
RO EE
2006 2005
ZEEAN —_TERF
Shares R 4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F {5t 8 &R E A E518
inissue duringthe yearused inthe basicloss 2 %F N #77 % iBA%
per share calculation INHEF 98 2,447,675,290 1,699,860,000
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. VE  BEREE
Group REE
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and
ments  Plantand fixtures Motor Office

Buildings ~ HEEEF  machinery BHR  vehicles  equipment Total
BT %6 HBERRE LE RE  BOZRG Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TR Tix TARL TR Tix FAL

Cost: A
At 1 January 2005 RZFFRE-F-H 29,647 2062 18473 191 3 9 51,037
Additions WE - - - - - 89 89
At31 December 2005 RZETRE+-A=+-A
and 1 January 2006 k=%%/5-5-A 29,647 2262 18473 191 3 182 51,126
Addtions RE - 110 - 846 - 203 1,159
Acquisitonofasubsidiay ~ WE-FHBAF
(note 30) (Hf3E30) - 2% - - - 3 57
Eichange realignment EXE% 1892 145 1,181 1 2 - 3253
At31 December 2006 RZFEAETZA=T-A  315%9 2,543 19,654 1,048 395 416 55,595
Accumulated depreciation ~~ B3tH7E
andimpaimment: RAE :
At 1 January 2005 R=FTRE-F-H 2110 804 11,773 152 127 67 15,033
Provided duringthe year ENER 1265 45 1,846 36 37 2 3,662
Impaimentduingtheyear — £7AE = - 3,364 - - - 3,364
At31 December 2005 RZZZRET-A=T-H
and 1 January 2006 k=25 5-5-H 3375 1256 16,983 188 164 9 2,059
Provided during the year EPNER 1972 534 - 126 40 63 2735
Impaimentduingtheyear £/ E - - 1,584 - - - 1,584
Eichange realignment EXE% 234 80 1,087 1 10 - 1422
At31 December 2006 R-22/ E+-A=1-H 5,581 1870 19,654 325 214 156 27800
Netbookvalue: REFE :
At31 December 2006 RZEERETZA=T-B 2598 673 - Px 18] 260 27795
At31 December 2005 R-EERE+-A=1-H 26,272 1,006 1,490 3 207 89 29067
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. Y% - BERS&M (H)

Company KA F
Furniture
and Office
fixtures equipment Total
ERREE BOAERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2005 N_ZEZRF—H—H 6 23 29
Additions NE — 89 89
At31 December 2005 and RZZBZERF+_A=+—AHK
at 1 January 2006 RZZEZERF—H—H 6 112 118
Additions NE 747 151 898
At31 December 2006 R-ZEEXRE+T_A=+—H 753 263 1,016
Accumulated depreciation: ZFHTE -
At 1 January 2005 RZZEZRF—H—H 4 15 19
Provided during the year FRRE 1 10 11
At31 December 2005 and RZZEZERE+_A=+—AK
at 1 January 2006 RZZZTRF—H—H 5 25 30
Provided during the year FREE 112 41 153
At 31 December 2005 R-ZEZAF+_H=+—H 117 66 183
Netbook value: AREFE
At31 December 2006 R-BEXRF+_-_H=1+—8H 636 197 833
At 31 December 2005 R_FFEAFE+T_A=+—8H 1 87 88
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEYME
Group
rEE
2006 2005
ZBBRF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Carryingamount at 1 January R—A—RZKREE 46,107 46,607
Net loss from a fair value adjustment REAFERARZEBEFRE (3,145) (500)
Exchange realignment BEE 54, 5 B 2,943 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RBRZKHEE 45,905 46,107
The investment properties are situated in Mainland China, and TE YN BIARE - Wiz AR
are held under medium lease terms. EFHRFR -
The Group's investment properties located in Mainland China REBRRBEARRE ZIZEMFER
were revalued on 31 December 2006 by Greater China Appraisal ZEERF+T_A=t—"HEBIEZE
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at BERGEMEETEERQARE
HK$45,905,000, on an open market, existing use basis. The AEAMBEBETRAEEEEMWRAE
investment properties are leased to a third party under an 45,905,000/ 7T © I E W ERIBL L
operating lease, further details of which are included in note HEMRTF—RE=7  HMFBEEHR
31(a) to the financial statements. BEMmERME31(@) °
15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FfttBAREREA
Group
rEE
2006 2005
ZBBRF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Carryingamount at 1 January R—A—RZKREE 10,040 10,630
Recognised during the year FRER (658) (590)
Exchange realignment BEE 4, 5 B 640 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RBZKHEE 10,022 10,040
Current portion included in prepayments, FARNFIE - 'e REAMD
deposits and other receivables FEWTRIE 2 TR B 7B 95 (644) (590)
Non-current portion SERBE D 9,378 9,450
The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is ME L DR BAMALESE - B
situated in Mainland China. iNEICIPN
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16. GOODWILL 16. W&

Group
EE
HK$'000
FHT

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30)

We B it 8~ =) (B &£30)

19,493

Costand carryingamount at 31 December 2006

RZBZERFT+A=+—HBZREAREEE

19,493

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arose on an acquisition of a subsidiary, Jovian Financial
Communications Limited (“Jovian”), during the year. Further
details of the acquisition are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The recoverable amount of goodwill has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections of Jovian over a period of 5 years, which are based
on financial budget approved by management of the Group and
Jovian. The discounted rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 4%.

Key assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of
Jovian, which is considered a single cash generating unit. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margin is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the unit.

BB ZRERR

FR - BEDERBHBARGEERM
HEFARRR(TEE)MEEL -8
BAURE 2 FHIB R M IS SRR M RE30 ©
BEZAKOSHECRBEEERFH
ZBREREFAFEZEREEME
E o AR REDBRELAEER
wmE B EE M ERE MG
&t MATERZREIRE B4% -

HERRAE—HEELBUFTERE
REE ETERAETEIERR K
TREEETHEMER AR - &5t
RenERAMKEZ S EERB/ER
M=

ENXRE —GAUEERRER A
B UAERAFEN—FER 2T
BREMEREE -

BRI R — P ERAN 2 BRI R TYRR TR ARG
BE - WRREBEZD TR

LA
(T
2

o

Annual Report 2006
—ERAEER

79



NoTES To FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % ) R Y A

31 December2006 —EZEAF+-_A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. EREE
Group REE
Licence  Knowhow Total
AT B i et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2005: N_ZEZTRF—H—H :
Cost DN 1,880 7,520 9,400
Accumulated amortisation 2t (1,316) (5,029) (6,345)
Net carrying amount REHE 564 2,491 3,055
Costat 1 January 2005, net of R_ZEZRF—HA—HBZ
accumulated amortisation RAE + Bk 25T 564 2,491 3,055
Amortisation provided during the year 4 P $5 %% 1 (188) (752) (940)
Impairment during the year FRRE (376) (1,739) (2,115)

RZZEZRF+=_A=+—80 "
—EEXNF—A—BX
—EEAE+=A=+—A - - -

— ==

At 31 December 2005,
1 January 2006
and 31 December 2006

FArERBNERBNEE—TZ
Ft+-A=1+—HLEFEMH -

Licence and knowhow had been fully written off during the year
ended 31 December 2006.

80

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMBATRZES
Company
AT

2006 2005

—EBEARE —TTRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD  HRAKA 47,616 28,475

Due from subsidiaries A NGRS 279,067 26,680
Due to a subsidiary FEAST B B A RI5RIE (17,479) (17,485)

309,204 37,670

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
are not repayable within one year. In the opinion of the
Company's directors, the amounts advanced to the subsidiaries
are considered as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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18. RBATZES (M)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MEARFEAT :
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued
registration ordinary share/ Percentage
and principal registered of equity
operations paid-up capital attributable
AR, ERTEBER to the Company Principal
Name AR EE Vg% ¥ NG 2 activities
=L R B EXHEE BRER DL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE i
Carissa Bay Inc. British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") 1E7T REER
RBELES
Direct Offer Limited BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
RBELES 17T REZERK
Fujian Goldigit Fine People’s Republic HK$3,000,000 = 100 Developmentand
Chemical Industry of China ("PRC")/ 3,000,000/ 7T distribution of
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China solvent pesticides
BEEALERMALT EE AR AAE A2 R i
BRAF* (&, RERH
FH B A
Fuzhou Development PRC/ US$10,000,000 - 100 Property holding
Zone GoldigitFine Mainland China 10,000,000 7T BFBEME
Chemical Industry A B KR
Co.,, Ltd. *
RMNFERSZREHA
L IARAA*
Goldigit Limited BVI US$10,000 100 - Investment holding
RBELES 10,000 7T REZER
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RBATZHE (W)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

EBARFENT - (&)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued
registration ordinary share/ Percentage
and principal registered of equity
operations paid-up capital attributable
AR, ERTEER to the Company Principal
Name AR EE Va:310% §3 AR activities
=1 it B EAHEE RER DL TEXRH
Direct Indirect
B L
Jovian Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of financial
Communications BB 10,000/ 7T public relation
Limited services
2 B R A RSN HEEER
BRAR AR %5
Master Tailor BVI Usg1 - 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited KBRS 17T REZER
Noble Star Consultants BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited RBELEES 17T REZER
Pebble Rise Inc. BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
RBELEES 17T REZER
Performing Investments BVI/Macau US$1 100 — Investment holding
Limited RBELEES 17T REZER
(“PerformingInvestments”) /SR
([Performing Investments) )
Profit Now Investments Hong Kong HK$1 100 = Inactive
Limited B 18T Emex
Quanzhou Quangang PRC/ US$1,000,000 - 100 Inactive
Fine Chemical Co., Ltd. * Mainland China 1,000,0005 7T Fmay
FMRAESZREA(T e,
BRRA* B R
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBAFZHER ()
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) MEBARFEET : (&)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued
registration ordinary share/ Percentage
and principal registered of equity
operations paid-up capital attributable
AR, ERTEBER to the Company Principal
Name EMREE Va:1i0% ¥ ADRERL activities
=t R B EXHE BRER DL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE %
Richpro Group Limited BVI US$1 100 — Investment holding
REELES 17T REER
Signalmedia Networks Hong Kong HK$1 — 100 Inactive
Hong Kong Limited B 1787 Fmex
Spring New BVI US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Developments Limited RBRELES 1€7T REZEK
Winning Elite Investments BVI/Macau Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited RBRUES 17T REZEK
("Winning Elite”) /R

([Winning Elite] )

2 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned o ZE M B R B TR A BUE R
enterprises under the PRC law. REINERE -
Further details of the Group's acquisition of Jovian are included RNEE YR 2 2 B A A 58N S
in note 30 to the financial statements. H&RMFT30 -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19. Wt ERS

Group Company
rEH PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
“ERAE —_TTHF ZBERF _TTIF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
(o3 FTHERT FHT THET THT
Listed equity investmentsin A&z L WA
Hong Kong, at fair value RE - BATE (a) 730 - 730 -
Unlisted equity investments, ~ JE TR A E -
at cost KA E (b) 211,410 - - -
212,140 — 730 —
Notes: BT
(@  During the year, the gross gain of the Group's available-for-sale @ FAN AEBEEEREHER
investments recognised directly in equity amounted to A HERE 7 # 5 /264,000
HK$264,000 (2005: Nil). The fair values of listed equity T (ZZTRF : £) o FHRA
investments are based on quoted market prices as at 31 REZATFEBB-_ZZRF+=
December 2006. R=+—RBZABmHERE -
(b)  Unlisted equity investments consisted of investments in equity (b) FELETRAEZEBIEETERAAHL

securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial
assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2006, unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$212,410,000 (2005: Nil) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. Further
details of the unlisted equity investments are set out below.

Investment in Sociedade

On 26 May 2006, Performing Investments, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, acquired an 8.69% equity interest in
Sociedade de Investimento Imobiliario Pun Keng Van, S.ARR.L.
("Sociedade”), a limited liability company incorporated in Macau
on 15 May 1993, for a consideration of HK$100,000,000.
Sociedade is principally engaged in property investment business.
The principal asset held by Sociedade as at 31 December 2006
was a piece of bare land located at Baia de Praia Grande (Nam
Van Lakes District), Macau for residential development purpose.

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited
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R-ZBERE+-_A=1+—HB  #&
BRMEIE A212,410,0008 T (ZZ2F
FF ;) 2IEETMIRANIEE « BAK
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EzHEtEREE  MESERAH
AFEL T EMEE - IELE™
AL E BT ¢

HSociedade 2 & &
RZZEEXFRA=-+8 &%
Br2&HEAAIPerforming
Investmentsfg A —ER — LI =4F
AATRABNRMEMKIZZER
‘A AlSociedade de Investimento
Imobiliario Pun Keng Van, S.A.R.L.
([Sociedade]) 8.69% % # - RIEA
100,000,000/ 7T ° Sociedade = 2
WEYZILEZETS © Sociedadeid —
EERNF+_A=+—8BHEEZE
L& E A —IRER P Baia de Praia
Grande (F/&# @) — Bz - {EE
EERAR -



19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

©)

(continued)

Investment in the Partnership

On 9 September 2006, Winning Elite, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, subscribed 6.4% of the expected total capitalisation
of US$200 million (equivalent to approximately HK$ 1,560 million)
in LCF Macau Co-Investor L.P,, a limited partnership formed on
16 June 2006 under the Partnership Act 1996 of the BVI (the
“Partnership"), at a consideration of HK$100 million.

The Partnership has a term of 10 years from the date of its
formation. The subscription was completed on 11 September
2006. The Partnership is principally engaged in property
investment business. The principal asset held by the Partnership
as at 31 December 2006 was a 3.85% equity interest in Baia da
Nossa Senhora da Esperanca Real Estate Development Company
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Macau, which
has an interest in a piece of land situated at Baia de Nossa Senhora
da Esperanca, Macau.

The Partnership comprises a general partner and three limited
partners, including Winning Elite, as at the balance sheet date.
The general partner of the Partnership shall have the sole right to
determine whether from time to time profits of the Partnership
shall be distributed in cash or shall be left within the Partnership,
in which event the capital account of all partners shall be increased.
The limited partners cannot make any investment and operating
decisions of the Partnership and shall be entitled to receive a
share of the annual net profits equivalent to their share in the
capitalisation of the Partnership. Limited partners may not
withdraw from the Partnership prior to the termination of the
Partnership. Interests in the Partnership may be assigned only
with the written consent of the general partner, which consent
may be withheld in its sole discretion.

Notes T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % ) R Y A

31 December2006 — T XF+—-A=1+—H

19. ATHtHERE ()

BEsE -

(b)

(%)
(%)

REBLEZIRE
REZZTZXFALANA  KNEBEZ
2 & 1 B A AlWinning Elite 2 88 — [
BBE-NANAFRBELZHSAE
EEE_TTNFANATAK
S 2 B R EEZHLCF Macau Co-
Investor LP., ( [£#1{%] ) FEHiA
M {8200,000,000% 7T ( #HER K
1,560,000,000/7T ) 2 6.4%E5
K {& % 100,000,000/ 7T °

BREEZ FHRBEK B R
FITE - REER-ZZZERFNA
T—HREK - aBEEFEREY
EREE - aBEERZZETRN
FT_A=+—BRFBEZEXEEE
R—ERNRFMEMK L ZERA R
Baia da Nossa Senhora da Esperanca
Real Estate Development Company
Limited ( #8 — 18252 FIBaia de
Nossa Senhora da Esperanca,Z 112
ez ) Z23.85%M%HE -

REER  ARCEBE—F K
EBRAR=ZREREZA (B
WinningElite ) &% 2 B H%#
HME—RER - TREEBH R
BABREDRIEEBELEFRR
B MEWRBRT  FIEEBAZ
BRI - BRE B ATRE
HEBCENEMKZEE REER
o WHBRKRRESREMEE %
EEREZ FEMT - BRZHE
TREREBEELIERAIEAREE
REGRIE - REBE 2R - 2
RES—REBAEEARE (A4
REAREMETTEL ) % A

BedERE -
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Payment in advance is normally required with each transaction
with customers, except for certain well-established customers
where the Group allows trading terms on credit. Invoices are
normally payable within 30 days of issuance. Credit limit are set
for customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its receivables to minimise credit risk. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing and the carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate to their fair values.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, net of impairment
loss, as at the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as
follows:

20.

RHEKRE

HEEPETZEBAR S —REFAMNK
B METERRFZEF » A&E
AlgRHEEY - HER-RAREH
0B EHIEN - AEEERTPRE
EELR - AEESKEFHEER
BRRERERERS - LWRESER
Bz o 8P E XA - A RAREEEH
BEHBRFSRARETRZEF @ it
BEANEEETRER - BHREK
ARl MEREEREQFER

++

E o

REER - REZABZE S EYGK
B (HBRREER ) 2Riko M
T

Group

AEM

2006
—BEAF
HK$'000
FTET

2005
—TETRF
HK$'000
THEIT

BEAE =@ A
P9z {E A
+Z=+=@AH
FRE—F

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months

7 to 12 months
Over 1 year

828 =
81 =
442 =
19 =

1,370 =
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LOAN AND RECEIVABLE

Notes T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. ERREKRRE

2006 2005
—RRRE —TTAH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE  TAT

Unlisted convertible debenture JE_ETh AT R AR EAE R

11,672 =

On 12 December 2006, the Company subscribed for an unlisted
zero-coupon convertible debenture (the “Debenture”) issued
by an unlisted company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability (the “Issuer”) at the face value of US$1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,672,000) with a maturity
date of 11 June 2007. The Debenture is convertible at the option
of the Group into preference shares of the Issuer at a price of
US$36.0 per share, subject to adjustment, on or before 11 June
2007. The preference shares of the Issuer shall rank prior to the
ordinary shares of the Issuer and the preference shareholders
are entitled to receive dividends declared by the Issuer and have
the same voting rights as the ordinary shareholders. If not
converted, the Debenture is redeemable at its face value on 11
June 2007.

The Debenture has been stated at the balance sheet date at
cost which approximates its fair value. The fair value to the
conversion right at the balance sheet date was considered
minimal.

RZBEZRF+-_A+=-H AR

% E{E 1,500,000 7T ( FHER ’7
11,672,000 7T ) RIE—EERER
ZEE MBS 2 BIR A BFE MK L
ZIEEMAAIBRITZIELTERET]
mREEE ( [EER]) - JHBEA
—EFLFERNA+T—H - BREZAIR
RNEEZEEMZRERI6.0EFTLZE
B (AITFHE) RZEZLFAAT
— BRI AEITAZEBER -
BITAZEBERBE T2 EBR=E
BICHAr - MELRIFE ABEKER
BOIAMERZBRE @ WEHLER
RRERAER 2 IR - (HEREERER
B AR —ZEZTLF AT —HEA
(EGEE)

BERENEERZKASE  WEE
DNHERE - REBEBZHBEZR
FEBMITRE -

/
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

22. RARBSFERERCERFER

DEPOSITS
Group Company
& PN
2005 2006 2005
“EEXE —TTHF —BEAE _—TTILF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i THT FHET THET
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEHR 4,197 8,967 2,062
Time deposits EHEX 182,884 97,913 175,884
187,081 106,880 177,946
Less: Pledged time deposits ~ J : {EiRTIER 2
for bank guarantee B B G) (7,000) - -
Cashand cashequivalents & K&IF&FEEE (b) 180,081 106,880 177946
Notes: BT
(@  The balance represented a restricted bank deposit made to a (@) #ErIEER—MBRITREZ R HIRTT

(b)

©

bank for guarantee granted by the bank to the landlord of one of
the Group's rental premises in Hong Kong. The term of the lease
is from 3 January 2006 to 31 December 2008 and accordingly,
the restricted bank deposit is classified as non-current.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eamn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The carrying
amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged
deposits approximate to their fair values.

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$1,401,000 (2005: HK$1,928,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited
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73R MRBRITRAEEERTE
ZEP-EEEME ETRMHZ
ER HOZFHH-_TTNF—
A=BRE—ZETNF+ A=+
—RL - Bt - BRGIRITFERD
BARERD -

RIR1T 2R S RBAT HRITFER
FERGEEZFBFIRE - B
ERERETFARBZRREH
Ko FERBENF-HE=EA - &
BREHERFARAETE - B
EBReSEBRAURBEREFRZ
SREESEEAFERS -

REER - AEBZ RS RBITEHE
BAARETE - £%/51,401,000
BIL(ZEZRF ¢ 1,928,000/
7o) c ARET AR ERAHME
e o SR ARARAR IR A B K RE 2 A
B EBS0I R AETE - (NEREES
BHRE  AEEEESBERES
EINEXEBZ RITRARBHZIRA
HihEH o
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23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BHEFAREA
An aged analysis of the accounts payable as at the balance sheet REER - REZEHCEZ RN
date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: THZBRE: DTN ¢
Group
REE
2006 2005

—ERAE ~TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T

Currentto 3 months BVERZE =1 A 1,032 -
40 6 months AN Y3 10 -
7 to 12 months +ZE=+ @A 12 -
Over 1 year B —F 175 -
1,229 =
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BHRNFIERARE  W—HRAERO
settled on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the Group's BAEE - XEEZESRNHIE K
trade payables approximate to their fair values. EEEEQAFERS -
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING 24. BRBITHESA
The Group's available overdraft facilities of HK$800,000 (2005: AREBAEPHRHZETEX A
Nil) are interest-bearing at HIBOR plus 2% per annum and 800,000 T (ZEZRF : ) /K
repayable on demand. HK$189,000 of the facilities had been FBRITRFER B 5 IF B R2005T
utilised by the Group as at the balance sheet date. The carrying B WARRHERZER - RE&EH
amounts of the Group's bank borrowing approximates to its fair H @ N&EEE5)F189,0008 L 215
value. g AEBZIRITEEZRAESRER

DNHEMEE -

Annual Report 2006 89
—ERAEER



90

NoTES To FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % ) R Y A

31 December2006 —EZEAF+-_A=+—H

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25. A RS
On 11 November 2005, the Company issued zero coupon RZZEZRAF+—H+—H &2Q
convertible bonds with a nominal value of HK$51,000,000. The ZX{THE{ES51,000,0008 T2 EEER
bonds are convertible at the option of the bondholders into HMRfES - BHFAlEEFFEAZE
ordinary shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.2713 per # - BER02713B T2 B ([Hig
share (the “Conversion Price”), subject to adjustment, on or Bl) (AITHEE)  R=ZZZTN\F+
before 10 November 2008 (the “Maturity Date”). Pursuant to —A+B ([HmAl ) ki ik
the convertible bond agreement, the bonds are subject to ﬁ"ﬁ TR - RIBABRRES W
mandatory conversion into ordinary shares of the Company at B B TAR D R B B2 B W B AT30
the Conversion Price, subject to adjustment, prior to the Maturity EI ZINETFHKRE  BERSHER
Date if the weighted average of the traded price of the shares in HA(E 2 150% - A& FI R B B
issue for the 30 days immediately prior to the Maturity Date ARABMERGE BB ARRI LB
represents a price which is equal to or higher than 150% of the fi% o
Conversion Price.
If not converted, the bonds are redeemable at the face value of MAER® FEHAIEKE@EAE
HK$51,000,000 on the Maturity Date. 51,000,000/8 7T B B Al T REE o
There was no movement in the number of convertible bonds FA - ABRRES BB W RS -
during the year. The fair value of the liability component was EBNEITE 2 A EN B &S,
estimated at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest BMEZBUER 2 BETS M XM
rate for a similar bond without a conversion option and 5T - MBER AR B F B 26.65%5t
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest B2 BHERATER - RERTBERAR
rate of 6.65% per annum. The residual amount is assigned as Bt - Wit ARRRAEG -
the equity component and is included in shareholders’ equity.
The convertible bonds issued have been split in the liability and EETIMRES S R A B RARAES
equity components as follows: PR
2006 2005
—EEREFE —TTHHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
Nominal value of convertible bonds AR ES 2 HE 51,000 51,000
Equity component AR A E 5 (8,957) (8,957)
Liability component at the issuance date RETRZAGEEH 42,043 42,043
Interest expense (note 7) MEF X (FEE7) 2,795 —
Liability component at 31 December R+—A=+—HZza&EBH5 44,838 42,043

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited
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217.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

Notes T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26. RIERIBEE

FRELEHRBEEZSHNOT ¢

Group rEH Depreciation
in excess of related
depreciation allowance
EREBTEREZINE
HK$'000
FAT
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) and Wi — P A 7] (FHEE30) &
at31 December 2006 R-BTRF+-H=1+—8 61
SHARE CAPITAL 27. &
2006 2005
—EEXRE —_ZTERHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000%
HK$0.05 each BREEC.05/E T L i 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE

2,687,301,949 (2005: 1,699,860,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each

2,687,301,949 (ZEZ R 4 :
1,699,860,000) A%
FREE0.05E Lz T Bk 134,365 84,993
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to

27. BR*E (i8)

FREBARAEETERRERAZ

the changes in the Company's issued ordinary share capital is as BHIRXH5WT
follows:
Issued Share
Number of share  premium
sharesinissue capital  account
ERTRG B#1T i47) Total
2R R nE R Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
At 1 January 2005 and RZETRF-A—HK
1 January 2006 —EER5—HA—H 1,699,860,000 84,993 72,657 157,650
Issue of new shares for subscription 5t 3288 1 247 #1 Ak 15
(note (a)) GEIQ) 959,000,000 47950 143850 191,800
Issue of new shares foracquisiton 5t Ui — BB 2 Al
of asubsidiary (note (b)) B17 23R (3 (b)) 28,441,949 1,422 4,921 6,343
At31 December 2006 R-ZZEZERF+-_A=+—H 2,687301,949 134365 221428 355793

Notes:

@

(b)

Pursuant to the resolution passed on 29 March 2006,
959,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each were issued to
certain subscribers at a price of HK$0.2 per share for a total cash
consideration of HK$191,800,000, giving rise to a share premium
of HK$143,850,000. During the year, the proceeds were used
to settle the consideration for the acquisitions of unlisted available-
for-sale financial assets, which were detailed in note 19(b) to
the financial statements and general working capital of the Group.

Upon the completion of the acquisition of Jovian on 12 April
2006, 28,441,949 shares were issued and allotted at a fair value
of HK$0.223 per share, giving rise to a share premium of
HK$4,921,000.

Share options
Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 28 to the

financial statements.

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited
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B 7 RiEZ  959,000,0000% B A%
B0.058 T EREITEETR02B T
BOITETREBA  BHSNER
191,800,000/ 7T + BE IR D&
B8R 143,850,000/ 7T ° FA * 3KIB
AREEEEHEESHEEY
RIE - BRI HREMEE19(b)
RAEE—REEESD °

R NFENA+ AR
HER  ERERATE0223B T
217 R EC 328,441,049/ % - &
BEE AR D = EAR4,921,000/4 7T ©
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Warrants

On 11 September 2006, the Company issued 2 unlisted
warrants, being Series A Warrant and Series B Warrant (collectively,
the "Warrants"), for HK$ 1 per Warrant to LCF Il Holdings, Limited,
a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI and an
independent third party to the Group (the “Subscriber”). Each
Warrant entitles the Subscriber to subscribe, subject to conditions
as further detailed below fulfilled, 267,634,000 ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.05 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.1999 per share, subject to adjustment and payable in
cash, from the date of issue to 10 September 20009.

No Warrants were exercised during the year and up to date of
approval of the financial statements. The exercise in full of the
Warrants as at balance sheet date would, under the present
value of the Group, result in the issue 535,268,000 additional
shares of the Company, representing approximately 19.9% of
the Company's shares in issue as at 31 December 2006 and
would give rise to additional share capital of HK$53,527,000
and share premium of HK$160,473,000.

Series A Warrant

The exercise of the subscription right attaching to the Series A
Warrant is conditional upon the Company receiving evidence
satisfactory to it showing that the aggregate of the audited profits
before tax of businesses acquired by the Group, being introduced
by the Subscriber after 11 September 2006 (the “Introduced
Businesses"), excluding those Introduced Businesses that are
loss-making, for the twelve months ending on the financial year
end date of those Introduced Businesses next following the
completion date of the relevant acquisition multiplied by the
relevant percentage interest acquired by the Group, exceed
HK$10 million.

Notes T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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217.

Bz % (i)
RREE
RZZZFXRFALA+T—B  ARFEIR
BIRBREE VBT M- HERBRE

ZESEMK S 2 BRA TN AARE
[ 2 %87 8 = 77 LCF Il Holdings, Limited
( [RERH] ) B2 IE L MR E
& BIARTRBRAERE BRI R AE
B ([REEE] ) - SORREZE
FHEEF0.1999/8 7T ( A FHEL
ARSI ) ZREE - BEITH
BEZZEZNFNATH  RBEAR
AR E{E0.05/8 TR E267,634,000
BER% 5 (HZEEERK T SCRTi R 2R BEE

-s;-)o

EREMEEmE B - WEITE
AR - BIBEASE ZRE - B
FEREE B 2 RIREE G EBEEI
TR A A]535,268,0008% A - 167K
REARZBEERFF+A=T—AHZ
BEITID#19.9% - I & FE £ FEIN
A& 453,527,000 T & {% 17 4 (B BR
160,473,000/ T °

AR IR R 5

MIPAARSISRARIERE 2 REEE 2 171
BEANTIEESEREZER B
TAEEFEAZER ( AIREARC
TERFNAT—BENBZER
([NM&B%K] ) - BTRRERSEER
ZNEBER ) NABUWEETTK B Biig
ZENBFEBHRELEBRIT=EA
Z R AT 2 48 B e H) TR LA ZN & B P
Bz BEHBMOEER - BB
10,000,000 TLIRBE1EE ©
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Warrants (continued)

Series B Warrant

The exercise of the subscription right attaching to the Series B
Warrant is conditional upon:

i)  The average market capitalisation of the Company for the
60 trading days immediately prior to the date which the
Subscriber is entitled to exercise the subscription, which is
determined as the product of the closing price of the
Company's shares and the number of shares issued and
outstanding at the close of business, has an average of no
less than HK$1 billion; and

i)  The Company, since 11 September 2006, having
completed the acquisitions of businesses, assets and/or
interests therein at a total consideration of not less than
HK$200 million, provided that the opportunities for such
acquisitions have been introduced to the Group by the
Subscriber.

The fair value of the Warrants granted during the year was
estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 December

2006:

Date of grant 11 September 2006
Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 82.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.90
Expected life of option (year) 3.00
Closing share price at date of grant (HK$) 0.19

The volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

Signal Media and Communications Holdings Limited
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BE Sl AR 1 A&

TTEB AR ER M 2 RABHA S
SR TR

D) ARRIREEREAGETERR
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ERRERESS (F) 3.00
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28.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Warrants (continued)

The fair value of the Warrants recognised by the Group as the
cost of equity-settled transactions for services provided by the
Subscriber as at the balance sheet date was HK$45,640,000, of
which HK$11,410,000 have been included in available-for-sale
investments and HK$34,230,000 have been included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables in relation to the
acquisitions of the Partnership and CMM International Group
Limited, which is detailed in note 36 to the financial statements,
respectively, as the Group considered the related services that
contribute to fulfilling the conditions attached to the Warrants
had been provided by the Subscriber during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 October 2003, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to the eligible participants who contribute
to the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high
calibre professionals, executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the directors (including executive directors
and non-executive directors), and employees of the Group,
consultants or advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group or business alliance
of the Group and shareholders of the Group. The Scheme, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from 15 October 2003.

The maximum numbers of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the ordinary
shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of adopting the Scheme,
but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders in a
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit under the Scheme.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

96

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the ordinary
shares in issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting of the Company.

Share options granted under the Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is also the grantee of
the options). In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or independent non-executive directors
of the Company, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant, are subject to
shareholders' approval in general meeting of the Company.

A share option may be accepted by a participant within 10 days
from the date of the offer for grant of the option. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors in accordance with the terms of the Scheme, and
commences from the date of acceptance of the offer of grant of
the share options and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors of the Company, but must not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer for grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
the grant, which must be a business day; and (iii) the nominal
value of the ordinary share.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 28. FMERRERTE (#)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends A PcHE I PR T RE A AR AR B
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. HERRARG FIRE -
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FARBE SR 2 M ARITRBARE
during the year: mr
Number of share options Price of the Company's shares***
Mﬂiiﬁ $Qﬂmﬁﬁﬁm
Name or At1 Granted  Forfeited At31 Date of Exercise price Immediately  Atexercise
category of January during during  December grant of Exercise period ofshare  Atgrantdate  beforethe date of
participant 2006 the year the year 2006 shareoptions* of shareoptions ~options** ofoptions exercise date options
BEANS HoBERE £ B HoREAE EhRE BhRE ERE  RERE  BEOE  RERE
3EH -A-H R ¥E +=A=1-A Rrag ikl fEE*  RHBA BHE  GREH
(dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/fmm/yyyy) HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
(B/R/%) (R/B/%)  pershare  pershare  pershare pershare
shEn  SRkEr  BRET  &REn
Director
g2
Kok King Yan, Edmund 16,998,600 = - 16,998,600 15/11/2005  15/11/2005t010/11/2015 0305 031 = =
£l 15/11/2005  15/11/2005%10/11/2015
Former director
HEE
Isao Matsushima 16,998,600 = - 16,998,600 15/11/2005  15/11/2005t010/11/2015 0305 031 = =
i 15/11/2005  15/11/2005%10/11/2015
Business consultants
FHER
Inaggregate 1,699,860 = - 1699860 15/11/2005  15/11/2005t010/11/2015 0305 031 = =
Aif 151172005 15/11/2005%10/11/2015
115,590,480 - (4589620) 69694260 15/11/2005  15/11/2005t010/11/2015 0315 031 = =
15/11/2005  15/11/200510/11/2015
Sub-total /)& 117290,340 - (45896220) 71394120
Other employee
ifbES
Inaggregate - 3399720 - 3399720 28/8/2006 28/8/20061027/8/2015 02 02 = =
fif 20/8/2006  28/8/2006%27/8/2015
Totel 57 15187540 3399720  (45,896,220) 108791040
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

* The vesting period of the share options is from date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

**  The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of
grant of the share options is the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
grant of the options.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$245,000, of which the Group recognised an equity-settled
share option expense of HK$245,000 during the year ended
31 December 2006.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used for the year ended 31 December 2006:

Date of grant 28 August 2006
Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 42.47
Risk-free interest rate (%) 429
Expected life of option (year) 9.00
Closing share price at date of grant (HK%) 0.20

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 108,791,040 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 4.0% of the Company's shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of these share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 108,791,040 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately HK$5,440,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$28,081,000 (before issue
expenses).

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
32 of the financial statements.

The Group's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation over the
nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's subsidiaries which are registered in the
People’s Republic of China has been transferred to reserve
funds which are restricted as to use.
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29. RESERVES (continued) 29. kR (#8)
(b) Company (b) AAF
Available-
Equity for-sale
component investment
of revaluation
Share convertible Warrant Share reserve
premium bonds reserve option  FHE Contributed Accumulated
acount  TEREZ  ARER reserve  REEf surplus losses Total
ROEER <REHD e RBERE R AABH  ZHEB &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL T TAL T TAL T TAL T
(note (b)) (note (a))
(i3 (b)) (Mist()
At 1 January 2005 R=E5RF-A-H 72,657 - = = = 28,470 (14,701) 86,426
Issue of convertible ETARES
bonds - 8,957 - - - - - 8957
Equity-settled share kA&E
optionamangements  FERERH - - - 8018 - - - 8018
Lossforthe year FNEE - - - - - - (15442) (15442
At31 December2005 ~ RWZETHE
and 1 January 2006 TZA=t-Bk
ZE5RE-A-H 72,657 8,957 = 8,018 = 28470 (30,143) 87959
Changesinfairvalueof ~ WHEHERE
available-for-sale ATEEY
investments = = = = 264 = = 264
Fquiy-setledwarant A& E
amangement RREE T - - 45,640 - - - - 45,640
Fquity-settled share kA&E
optionamangements  FERERH = = = 245 = = = 245
Transferofshareoption SR MAIA{TEE
reseneuponforfeture iR SR
ofunexercisedoptions  EERYIERA(E - - - (2432) - - 2432 -
Issue of shares iR 148,771 - - - - - - 487
Lossforthe year FNEE - - - - - - (5231)  (25231)
At31 December2006  RWZEEAE
+-A=1-H 221,428 8,957 45,640 5831 264 28470 (52,942) 257648
Notes: B EE -

100

(@) The Company's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation referred to in note 29(a)

over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefor.

(b)  The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note
2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 12 April 2006, the Group acquired the entire issued share

capital of Jovian. Jovian is engaged in the provision of financial

public relation services. The purchase consideration of
HK$21,331,000 was satisfied by cash of HK$12,798,000 and
by the allotment and issue of 28,441,949 new ordinary shares

of the Company at a price of HK$0.3 per share.

The fair value of the acquired identifiable assets and liabilities at

the date of acquisition is:
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30. XSt

RZZBEXRFMA+=A - AEEK
BHREZE2MEBITRA - HERE
RIS N HBARARTS < 3575 o a1
821,331,000/ 7T LAZR £ 12,798,000
BT MR TR (D038 T 2 (B AL 3
N E51728,441,94908 2N 2 BT E AR
ZARZA o

REERE - BB BRI EENE
Bz RFEWT

Fair value

recognised
on acquisition Carrying
AU amount
SRR ALE IREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FAET FAEIT
Property, plant and equipment ME - B RRE 13 57 57
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 26 61 61
Trade receivables B 5 e GRIA 537 537
Prepayments, deposits and AR RIA - R'E RHEHAM
other receivables JE W 3R IE 218 218
Cash and bank balances RE RRITHEER 590 590
Trade payables B SR (599) (599)
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERESER (386) (386)
Bank overdrafts RITEX (162) (162)
Tax payable FER R IE (668) (668)
(352) (352)
Goodwill on acquisition WS 2 2 g8 16 19,493
Satisfied by: ATEIFAZA
Cash Be 12,798
Issue of new shares BT (D 27 6,343
19,141
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 30. A6 ()
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HUEEEMEE 2R KRR 2% E
respect of the acquisition of Jovian is as follows: BHERLFEITAT
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration RENRE (12,798)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUHEIR € RIRTTHE 590
Bank overdrafts RITEL (162)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WHEMT B A RIFTESE 2
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary RekBeEEEERLFE (12,370)
Since its acquisition, Jovian contributed HK$5,392,000 to the BUWHEIAER  HEAKRKEBELEIK
Group's turnover and a profit of HK$19,000 to the consolidated 5392,0008 L& %% W AEE—
loss for the year ended 31 December 2006. ZERFT_A=T—BIEFEZL

A B 155K 19,0008 TTim Al ©

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, & GFREFENET - AIREARE
the revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the FRBEXEB WG R AEEBZF
loss of the Group for the year would have been HK$7,156,000 M & 18 & 7 Bl 737,156,000/ 7T K&
and HK$36,596,000. 36,596,000/ T °
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31.

(@)

(b)

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property located in
Mainland China under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms of four years.

At 31 December 2006, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
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31.

(@)

EEHARH

EREBEA
AEBRELEESHALEE
RPBAEZREYE - &2
HELHZEKR 2B AT
F o

R=BEXFF-A=+—F -
REBRBEABFPFIZN T
HAFRI B HA 2 PRI EH S S H S
BH& AW 2 EH LM
T

Group
rEE
2006 2005
—BEAE —TTHHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Within one year —FR 1,000 1,000
Inthe second tofifth years, inclusive RE_ZFRF (BIEEREMF) - 1,000
1,000 2,000
As lessee (b) 1EREHEA
The Group lease certain of its leasehold land and buildings AEERBLEREHRERE
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for leasehold THETHREF - HAEEL
land and buildings are negotiated for terms ranging from h S FAE R EK 2 AN T
one to three years. —E=Hc
At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company had RZZEZRF+T_A=1+—8 -
total future minimum lease payments under non- AEE RAA IR T7IHAM
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: FHz PRAIREHE S HERRR
AR HEESBEHEAT -
Group Company
S 0 ¥ NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZBEXRF _—TTHhF ZBERF _—TTIHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT THERT THET
Within one year —5FRQ 2,800 1,829 - 55
In the second to fifth years, RE—ZERF
inclusive (BREEMF) 3,423 1774 - -
6,223 3,603 - 55
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32.

33.

34.

35.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
31(b) above, the Group and the Company had capital
commitments at the balance sheet date in relation to the
acquisition of CMM International Group Limited, further details
of which are included in note 36 to the financial statements.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

Major non-cash transactions

Save as disclosed in notes 27, 28 and 30 to the financial
statements, there is no other major non-cash transaction of
investing and financing activities for the year ended 31 December
2006 (2005: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors are the key management personnel of the Group.
Details of their remunerations are disclosed in note 8 to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings, convertible bonds, and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as available-for-
sale investments, trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and credit risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group
has an interest rate risk management policy in place to monitor
and mitigate interest rate risk within tolerable risk limits.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between the
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts. To manage liquidity risk, the Group periodically
monitors their net operating cash flow and maintains an adequate
working capital for their daily operation.

Foreign currency risk

The monetary assets and transactions of several subsidiaries of
the Group are principally denominated in foreign currencies,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. As a result of
certain assets and business operations in Mainland China, the
Group's balance sheet can be affected by movements in RMB/
HK$ exchange rate.

The Group currently has no particular hedging vehicles to hedge
its exposure to foreign exchange risk profile. It is the Group's
policy to monitor foreign exchange exposure and to make use
of appropriate hedging measures when required.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debits is not significant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the senior
management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, equity investments and
other financial assets, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
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36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 17 November 2006, the Group entered into a conditional
share purchase agreement with Ambleside Associates Limited
("Ambleside”), an independent third party, to acquire a 51.3%
equity interest in CMM International Group Limited (“CMM"), a
private limited company incorporated in the BVI and principally
engaged in the manufacture and trading of cosmetic and related
products, at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$30 million
(the “CMM Acquisition”). Ambleside was the then sole
shareholder of CMM. As at 31 December 2006, a refundable
deposit of HK$ 10 million was made by the Group and is included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006.

On 14 February 2007, the Group, CMM, Ambleside and Ms.
Cheng Ming Ming (“Ms. Cheng"), a shareholder of Ambleside,
entered into a termination and share purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the CMM Acquisition was terminated and the
Group proposed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
CMM from Ambleside at consideration of HK$100 million (the
"New CMM Acquisition”). The consideration to be satisfied by
the Company will be in the form of cash of HK$33,000,000 and
the allotment and issue of 670,000,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company to Ms. Cheng at a price of HK$10 per share.

The New CMM Acquisition would constitute a very substantial
acquisition and a connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules as Ms. Cheng is expected to be appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company after the New CMM
Acquisition. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the completion of the
New CMM Acquisition is subject to, inter alia, the approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting. Pursuant to the extraordinary ordinary general
meeting held on 26 March 2007, the New CMM Acquisition
was duly approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company. The New CMM Acquisition is expected to be
completed by 30 April 2007.

Other than disclosed above, the Group had no significant post
balance sheet event.
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COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Upon the cessation of the development and distribution of the
solvent pesticides business during the year ended 31 December
2006, certain comparative amounts as shown in the consolidated
income statement of the Group and its relevant notes for the
year ended 31 December 2005 have been reclassified to present
the information by continuing operations and the discontinued
operation so as to achieve a comparable presentation of results
for the year ended 31 December 2006.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 20 April 2007.
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